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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q
(Mark One)

x Quarterly Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2009

OR

¨ Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
For the transition period from                      to                     

Commission File Number: 0-26006

TARRANT APPAREL GROUP
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

California 95-4181026
(State or other jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization)

(I.R.S. Employer

Identification Number)
801 South Figueroa Street, Suite 2500

Los Angeles, California 90017

(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip code)

Registrant�s telephone number, including area code: (323) 780-8250
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Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or
such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).    Yes  x    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer,� and �smaller reporting company� in Rule
12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer  ¨         Accelerated filer  ¨         Non-accelerated filer  ¨         Smaller reporting company  x

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act).    Yes  ¨    No  x

Number of shares of Common Stock of the Registrant outstanding as of May 11, 2009: 30,543,763.
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Cautionary Legend Regarding Forward-looking Statements

Some of the information in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q may constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A
of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, both as amended. These forward-looking statements are
subject to various risks and uncertainties. The forward-looking statements include, without limitation, statements regarding our future business
plans and strategies and our future financial position or results of operations, as well as other statements that are not historical. You can find
many of these statements by looking for words like �will�, �may�, �believes�, �expects�, �anticipates�, �plans� and �estimates� and for similar expressions.
Because forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties, there are many factors that could cause the actual results to differ materially
from those expressed or implied. These include, but are not limited to, our ability to timely complete the pending acquisition proposal, general
economic conditions, our ability to competitively and profitably manage a sourcing and distribution business, the financial strength of our major
customers, the continued acceptance of our existing and new products by our existing and new customers, dependence on key customers, the
risks of foreign manufacturing, competitive and economic factors in the textile and apparel markets, the availability of raw materials, the
successful resolution of pending litigation, and other risks and uncertainties that may be detailed herein. This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
contains important cautionary statements and a discussion of many of the factors that could materially affect the accuracy of Tarrant�s
forward-looking statements and such statements and discussions are incorporated herein by reference. Any subsequent written or oral
forward-looking statements made by us or any person acting on our behalf are qualified in their entirety by the cautionary statements and factors
contained or referred to in this section. We do not intend or undertake any obligation to update any forward-looking statements to reflect events
or circumstances after the date of this document or the date on which any subsequent forward-looking statement is made or to reflect the
occurrence of unanticipated events.
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PART I � FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Financial Statements.
TARRANT APPAREL GROUP

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

March 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
(Unaudited)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 603,094 $ 5,212,293
Restricted cash 100,000 100,000
Accounts receivable, net of $0.7 million and $0.6 million allowance for returns, discounts and bad
debts at March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively 23,326,781 19,198,746
Due from related parties 15,431,056 21,581,447
Inventory 8,573,883 7,065,805
Temporary quota rights �  35,835
Prepaid expenses 1,220,653 1,202,461
Deferred tax assets 153,392 146,401

Total current assets 49,408,859 54,542,988
Property and equipment, net of $6.2 million and $7.4 million accumulated depreciation and
amortization at March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, respectively 2,033,713 1,985,526
Due from related parties, net of $2.6 million reserve and $0.8 million adjustment to fair value both
at March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 132,400 138,700
Deferred financing cost, net of $0.4 million accumulated amortization both at March 31, 2009 and
December 31, 2008 30,553 67,217
Other assets 1,691 1,691
Goodwill, net 3,282,845 3,282,845

Total assets $ 54,890,061 $ 60,018,967

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Short-term bank borrowings $ 8,225,871 $ 10,630,366
Accounts payable 9,175,324 11,679,398
Accrued expenses 4,825,253 5,850,393
Income taxes, current portion 4,213,709 4,222,909
Debt facility and factoring agreement 14,166,523 12,606,796

Total current liabilities 40,606,680 44,989,862
Income taxes, net of current portion 4,527,687 5,163,568

Total liabilities 45,134,367 50,153,430
Minority interest in PBG7 60,398 60,398
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders� equity:
Preferred stock, 2,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and outstanding at March 31, 2009
and December 31, 2008 �  �  
Common stock, no par value, 100,000,000 shares authorized; 30,543,763 shares issued and
outstanding at March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 115,757,465 115,757,465
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Warrants to purchase common stock 5,471,406 5,515,506
Contributed capital 13,022,476 12,918,949
Accumulated deficit (122,915,018) (122,744,111)
Notes receivable from officer and shareholder (1,641,033) (1,642,670)

Total shareholders� equity 9,695,296 9,805,139

Total liabilities and shareholders� equity $ 54,890,061 $ 60,018,967

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

2
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TARRANT APPAREL GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended
March 31,

2009 2008
Net sales $ 34,574,182 $ 46,321,716
Net sales to related party 2,759,343 4,177,081

Total net sales 37,333,525 50,498,797
Cost of sales 26,831,033 36,653,414
Cost of sales to related party 2,520,376 3,805,981

Total cost of sales 29,351,409 40,459,395
Gross profit 7,982,116 10,039,402
Selling and distribution expenses 2,193,697 3,429,235
General and administrative expenses 5,373,413 6,318,617
Royalty expenses 262,148 334,278

Income (loss) from operations 152,858 (42,728)
Interest expense (166,044) (230,662)
Interest income 33,228 39,922
Interest in loss of equity method investee �  (23,394)
Other income 32,308 181,256
Other expense (49,764) (63,752)

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes and minority interest 2,586 (139,358)
Provision for income taxes 173,493 114,043
Minority interest �  (118)

Net loss $ (170,907) $ (253,283)

Net loss per share � Basic and Diluted $ (0.01) $ (0.01)

Weighted average common and common equivalent shares outstanding:
Basic and Diluted 30,543,763 32,043,763

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

3
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TARRANT APPAREL GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)

Three Months Ended March 31,
2009 2008

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net loss $ (170,907) $ (253,283)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment 102,008 87,612
Amortization of deferred financing cost 36,664 36,664
Change in the provision for returns and discounts 29,370 (498,412)
Change in the provision for bad debts 144,648 (552,011)
Loss on sale of fixed assets 49,764 63,752
Loss from equity method investment �  23,394
Gain on sale of marketable securities �  (40,245)
Unrealized gain on marketable securities �  (65,429)
Minority interest �  (118)
Stock-based compensation 59,427 130,434
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (4,302,054) (1,217,420)
Due from related parties 6,156,693 (859,703)
Inventory (1,508,078) 5,640,796
Temporary quota rights 35,835 (51,888)
Prepaid expenses (18,192) 84,833
Deferred taxes (6,991) (35,150)
Accounts payable (2,504,074) (3,213,039)
Accrued expenses (1,025,139) (386,203)
Income taxes payable (645,081) (3,973,868)

Net cash used in operating activities (3,566,107) (5,079,284)
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of marketable securities �  (586,470)
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities �  124,358
Purchase of property and equipment (209,424) (31,634)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 9,464 53,290
Collection of notes receivable from shareholders and officers 1,637 77,668

Net cash used in investing activities (198,323) (362,788)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Short-term bank borrowings, net (2,404,495) (952,966)
Proceeds from debt facility and factoring agreement 30,418,593 52,109,470
Payment of debt facility and factoring agreement (28,858,867) (44,040,450)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities (844,769) 7,116,054

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (4,609,199) 1,673,982
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 5,212,293 491,416

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 603,094 $ 2,165,398

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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TARRANT APPAREL GROUP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

1. Organization and Basis of Consolidation
The accompanying financial statements consist of the consolidation of Tarrant Apparel Group, a California corporation, and its majority owned
subsidiaries located primarily in the U.S., Asia, and Mexico. At March 31, 2009, we own 75% of PBG7, LLC (�PBG7�). We consolidate these
entities and reflect the minority interests in earnings (losses) of the ventures in the accompanying financial statements. All inter-company
amounts are eliminated in consolidation. The 25% minority interest in PBG7 is owned by BH7, LLC, an unrelated party.

We serve mass merchandisers, department stores, branded wholesalers and specialty chains by designing, merchandising, contracting for the
manufacture of, and selling casual apparel for women, men and children under private label and private brands.

Historically, our operating results have been subject to seasonal trends when measured on a quarterly basis. This trend is dependent on numerous
factors, including the markets in which we operate, holiday seasons, consumer demand, climate, economic conditions and numerous other
factors beyond our control. Generally, the second and third quarters are stronger than the first and fourth quarters. There can be no assurance that
the historic operating patterns will continue in future periods.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The accompanying unaudited financial statements have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United
States of America (�US GAAP�) for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X.
Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by US GAAP for complete financial statements. In the opinion of
management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary for a fair presentation of the results of operations
for the periods presented have been included.

The consolidated financial data at December 31, 2008 is derived from audited financial statements which are included in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008, and should be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements and notes thereto.
Interim results are not necessarily indicative of results for the full year.

The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements include all majority-owned subsidiaries in which we exercise control. All
significant inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated from the consolidated financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with US GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Significant estimates used by us in preparation of the consolidated financial
statements include allowance for returns, discounts and bad debts, inventory, due from related parties reserve, valuation of long-lived and
intangible assets and goodwill, accrued expenses, income taxes, stock options valuation, contingencies and litigation. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Marketable Securities

In January 2008, we invested $586,000 in marketable securities which are classified as trading marketable securities. During the three months
ended March 31, 2008, we sold some of the investments in marketable securities; proceeds from the sale were $124,000 and the gain of $40,000
was reported in other income in the consolidated statements of operations. As of March 31, 2008, the unrealized gain on investment in
marketable securities of $65,000 was recorded in other income based on the closing price of the marketable securities at March 31, 2008 in the
consolidated statements of operations. We sold all of the investment in marketable securities before December 31, 2008.

5
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TARRANT APPAREL GROUP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

License Agreements and Royalty Expenses

We enter into license agreements from time to time that allow us to use certain trademarks and trade names on certain of our products. These
agreements require us to pay royalties, generally based on the sales of such products, and may require guaranteed minimum royalties, a portion
of which may be paid in advance. Our accounting policy is to match royalty expense with revenue by recording royalties at the time of sale at
the greater of the contractual rate or an effective rate calculated based on the guaranteed minimum royalty and our estimate of sales during the
contract period. If a portion of the guaranteed minimum royalty is determined not to be recoverable, the unrecoverable portion is charged to
expense at that time. See Note 12 of the �Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements� regarding various agreements we have entered into.

Royalty expense in the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 were $262,000 and 334,000, respectively.

Deferred Rent Provision

When a lease requires fixed escalation of the minimum lease payments, rental expense is recognized on a straight line basis over the initial term
of the lease, and the difference between the average rental amount charged to expense and amounts payable under the lease is included in
deferred amount. Furthermore, this amount also includes $534,000 of tenant improvement allowance, which is also recognized on a straight-line
basis from the date the asset was put into place up to the end of the lease term and/or the end of the asset�s useful life, whichever comes first.

As of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008, deferred rent of $729,000 and $661,000, respectively, was recorded under accrued expense in
our consolidated financial statements.

Reclassification on Financial Statements

Certain 2008 amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2009 presentation.

3. Stock-Based Compensation
Our Employee Incentive Plan, formerly the 1995 Stock Option Plan (the �1995 Plan�), authorized the grant to our officers, employees, directors
and consultants of both incentive and non-qualified stock options for shares of our common stock. As of March 31, 2009, there were outstanding
options to purchase a total of 739,000 shares of common stock granted under the 1995 Plan. No further grants may be made under the 1995 Plan.
On May 25, 2006, we adopted the Tarrant Apparel Group 2006 Stock Incentive Plan (the �2006 Plan�), which authorizes the issuance of up to
5,100,000 shares of our common stock pursuant to options or awards granted under the 2006 Plan. As of March 31, 2009, there were outstanding
options to purchase a total of 743,000 shares of common stock, and 2,857,000 shares remained available for issuance pursuant to awards granted
under the 2006 Plan. The exercise price of options under the plan must be equal to at least 100% of fair market value of common stock on the
date of grant. The 2006 Plan also permits other types of awards, including stock appreciation rights, restricted stock and other
performance-based benefits.

On January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), �Share-Based Payment,� (�SFAS No. 123(R)�) which requires the measurement and
recognition of compensation expense for all share-based payment awards made to employees and directors based on estimated fair values. SFAS
No. 123(R) supersedes our previous accounting under Accounting Principles Board Opinion (�APB�) No. 25, �Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees� for periods beginning in fiscal 2006. In March 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
(�SAB�) No. 107 relating to SFAS No. 123(R). We have applied the provisions of SAB No. 107 in our adoption of SFAS No. 123(R).

We adopted SFAS No. 123(R) using the modified prospective transition method, which requires the application of the accounting standard as of
January 1, 2006, the first day of our fiscal year 2006. Our financial statements as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008
reflect the impact of SFAS No. 123(R). SFAS No. 123(R) requires companies to estimate the fair value of share-based payment awards to
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employees and directors on the date of grant using an option-pricing model. The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected to
vest is recognized as expense over the requisite service periods in our consolidated statements of operations.
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TARRANT APPAREL GROUP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

A summary of our stock option activity and related information for the year ended December 31, 2008 and the three months ended March 31,
2009 is as follows:

Employees
Number of

shares Exercise Price
Options outstanding at December 31, 2007 8,214,209 $ 1.39-$45.50
Granted �  �  
Exercised �  �  
Forfeited (1,309,550) $ 1.84-$39.97
Expired (1,022,750) $ 15.50-$33.13

Options outstanding at December 31, 2008 5,881,909 $ 1.39-$45.50
Granted �  �  
Exercised �  �  
Forfeited �  �  
Expired �  �  

Options outstanding at March 31, 2009 5,881,909 $ 1.39-$45.50
We had no stock options outstanding to non-employees as of December 31, 2008 and March 31, 2009.

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding, expected to vest and exercisable as of December 31, 2008 and
March 31, 2009:

Number
of

shares

Weighted
Average
Exercise

Price

Weighted
Average

Remaining

Contractual
Life (Years)

Intrinsic
Value

As of December 31, 2008
Employees - Outstanding 5,881,909 $ 4.16 4.5 $ 0
Employees - Expected to vest 5,824,678 $ 4.18 4.4 $ 0
Employees - Exercisable 5,497,780 $ 4.32 4.2 $ 0
As of March 31, 2009:
Employees - Outstanding 5,881,909 $ 4.16 4.2 $ 0
Employees - Expected to vest 5,824,678 $ 4.18 4.2 $ 0
Employees - Exercisable 5,522,780 $ 4.31 4.0 $ 0
The following table summarizes our non-vested options as of December 31, 2008 and changes during the three months ended March 31, 2009:

Non-vested Options
Number of

shares
Weighted Average

Grant-Date Fair Value
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Non-vested at December 31, 2008 384,129 $ 1.24
Granted �  �  
Vested (25,000) $ 1.08
Forfeited �  �  

Non-vested at March 31, 2009 359,129 $ 1.25
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TARRANT APPAREL GROUP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

Stock-based compensation expense recognized during the period is based on the value of the portion of share-based payment awards that is
ultimately expected to vest during the period. Stock-based compensation expense recognized in the consolidated statements of operations for the
three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 consisted of compensation expense for the share-based payment awards granted subsequent to
January 1, 2006 based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123(R). For stock-based payment
awards issued to employees and directors, stock-based compensation is attributed to expense using the straight-line single option method. As
stock-based compensation expense recognized in the consolidated statements of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008
is based on awards ultimately expected to vest, it has been reduced for estimated forfeitures, which we estimate to be 12.5% and 7.7%,
respectively. SFAS No. 123(R) requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual
forfeitures differ from those estimates.

Our determination of fair value of share-based payment awards to employees and directors on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes model is
affected by our stock price as well as assumptions regarding a number of highly complex and subjective variables. These variables include, but
are not limited to our expected stock price volatility over the term of the awards. When valuing awards, we estimate the expected terms using the
�safe harbor� provisions provided in SAB No. 110 and the volatility using historical data. We did not grant any options to purchase shares of
common stock during the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008. The stock-based compensation expense related to employees or director
stock options recognized for the three months ended March 31, 2009 was $59,000, of which $48,000 was recorded under general and
administrative expenses and $11,000 was recorded under selling and distribution expenses in our consolidated statements of operation. The
stock-based compensation expense related to employees or director stock options recognized for the three months ended March 31, 2008 was
$130,000, of which $37,000 was recorded under general and administrative expenses and $93,000 was recorded under selling and distribution
expenses in our consolidated statements of operation. Basic and dilutive income per share for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008
was decreased by $0.01 from $(0.00) to $(0.01) by the additional stock-based compensation recognized.

There were no options exercised in the three months ended March 31, 2009 or 2008. The total fair value of shares vested for the three months
ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 were approximately $27,000 and $350,000, respectively.

As of March 31, 2009, there was $287,000 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share-based compensation
arrangements granted under the plans. That cost is expected to be recognized over the weighted-average period of 1.2 years.

When options are exercised, our policy is to issue previously unissued shares of common stock to satisfy share option exercises. As of March 31,
2009, we had 69.5 million authorized, unissued shares of common stock.

4. Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable consists of the following:

March 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
U.S. trade accounts receivable $ 2,486,929 $ 1,015,340
Foreign trade accounts receivable 2,537,993 4,433,595
Factored accounts receivable 18,809,375 14,011,129
Other receivables 218,161 290,341
Allowance for returns, discounts and bad debts (725,677) (551,659)

$ 23,326,781 $ 19,198,746
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At March 31, 2009, substantially all trade receivables, irrespective of their debt ratings, were factored under our credit facility with GMAC and
GMAC advances up to 90% of the invoice value to us immediately upon the submission of invoices. See Note 7 of �Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.�
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TARRANT APPAREL GROUP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

5. Inventory
Inventory consists of the following:

March 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Raw materials - fabric and trim accessories $ 491,076 $ 821,411
Finished goods shipments-in-transit 2,370,442 3,256,727
Finished goods 5,712,365 2,987,667

$ 8,573,883 $ 7,065,805

6. Equity Method Investment � American Rag
In 2003, we acquired a 45% equity interest in the owner of the trademark �American Rag Cie� and the operator of American Rag retail stores for
$1.4 million; and our subsidiary, Private Brands, Inc., acquired an exclusive license to certain rights to this trademark. We guaranteed the
payment to the licensor of minimum royalties of $10.4 million over the initial 10-year term of the agreement. The guaranteed annual minimum
royalty is payable in advance in monthly installments during the term of the agreement. The royalty owed to the licensor in excess of the
guaranteed minimum, if any, is payable no later than 30 days after the end of the preceding full quarter with the amount for last quarter adjusted
based on actual royalties owed for the year. If a portion of the guaranteed minimum royalty is determined not to be recoverable, the
unrecoverable portion is charged to expense at that time. Private Brands also entered into a multi-year exclusive distribution agreement with
Macy�s Merchandising Group, LLC, the sourcing arm of Federated Department Stores, to supply Macy�s Merchandising Group with American
Rag Cie, a casual sportswear collection for juniors and young men. Under this arrangement, Private Brands designs and manufactures American
Rag apparel, which is distributed by Macy�s Merchandising Group exclusively to Federated stores across the country. Beginning in August 2003,
the American Rag collection was available in select Macy�s locations and is currently available in approximately 600 Macy�s stores nationally.
The investment in American Rag Cie, LLC was accounted for under the equity method. Income (loss) of the equity method investment was
recorded in the United States geographical segment.

During 2008, we became involved in litigation with American Rag Cie, LLC and American Rag Cie II with respect to our license rights to the
American Rag Cie trademark. On December 23, 2008, we entered into a Settlement Agreement with American Rag Cie, LLC and American Rag
Cie II providing for a settlement and release of all claims with respect to our litigation with American Rag Cie, LLC and American Rag Cie II.
Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, the parties agreed to the following actions:

� Dismissal of the Action by all parties and release of claims asserted in the Action;

� Redemption by American Rag Cie, LLC of our 45% membership interest in American Rag Cie, LLC, and redemption by American
Rag Compagnie of our 5,000 shares in American Rag Compagnie; and

� Amendment of the License Agreement with respect to the �American Rag Cie� trademark.
As a result of the Settlement Agreement, we no longer own an equity interest in American Rag Cie, LLC or American Rag Compagnie, and
continue to license rights to the American Rag Cie trademark. As a result of disposition of our membership interest in American Rag Cie, LLC
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and shares in American Rag Compangnie, we recorded an impairment of goodwill of $1.4 million in the fourth quarter of 2008.

In connection with the Settlement Agreement, on December 23, 2008, Private Brands, Inc. and American Rag Cie, LLC entered into an
Amended License Agreement. The Amended License Agreement amends and restates our prior license agreement for the �American Rag Cie�
trademark effective October 1, 2008 to, among other things:

� Extend the initial term of the agreement to September 30, 2018, with six consecutive ten-year automatic renewal terms;

9
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TARRANT APPAREL GROUP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

� Amend the territory to consist of the United States, Canada, Mexico and Bermuda;

� Reduce the annual guaranteed minimum royalties and revise the royalty rates;

� Clarify the provisions with respect to calculation of royalties and reporting; and

� Amend the termination provisions.
We have accounted for the transfers and exchanges within the Settlement Agreement in accordance to APB 29 �Accounting for Nonmonetary
Transactions�, which fair valued the non-monetary exchange as we deemed the transaction to have commercial substance. We performed a
calculation to determine the present value of the future cash flows under the prior license agreement and amended license agreement and
determined that the cash flows did not differ significantly. Therefore, the incremental fair value of the economic benefit from the original to the
amended license agreement was insignificant.

The guaranteed annual minimum royalty under the License Agreement, as amended, for year 2009 is $553,000. At March 31, 2009, the total
commitment on royalties remaining on the term under the Amended License Agreement was $8.2 million. Royalty income payable to American
Rag in the first quarter of 2009 and 2008 was $262,000 and $334,000, respectively.

7. Debt
Short-term bank borrowings consist of the following:

March 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Import trade bills payable � DBS Bank and Aurora Capital $ 1,845,636 $ 4,000,602
Bank direct acceptances � DBS Bank 3,346,000 3,591,801
Other Hong Kong credit facilities � DBS Bank 3,034,235 3,037,963

$ 8,225,871 $ 10,630,366

Debt facility and factoring agreement � GMAC CF:

March 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Debt facility and factoring agreement � GMAC CF $ 14,166,523 $ 12,606,796

Import Trade Bills Payable, Bank Direct Acceptances and Other Hong Kong Credit Facilities

In June 2006, our subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Tarrant Company Limited, Marble Limited and Trade Link Holdings Limited, entered into a new
credit facility with DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited (�DBS�), which replaced our prior letter of credit facility with DBS. Under this facility, we
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may arrange for letters of credit and acceptances. The maximum amount our Hong Kong subsidiaries were permitted to borrow under this
facility at any time was US $25 million. In November 2008, the maximum amount was temporarily decreased to $22 million, and in March 2009
the maximum amount was further reduced to $20 million as a result of the bank�s policy of reducing credit limits provided to corporate clients.
The interest rate under the letter of credit facility is equal to the Hong Kong Dollar Standard Bills Rate quoted by DBS minus 0.5% if paid in
Hong Kong Dollars (which rate was 5.75% per annum at March 31, 2009) or the U.S. Dollar Standard Bills Rate quoted by DBS plus 0.5% if
paid in any other currency (which rate was 3.77% per annum at March 31, 2009). This is a demand facility and is secured by a security interest
in all the assets of the Hong Kong subsidiaries; by a pledge of our office property where our Hong Kong office is located, which is owned by
Gerard Guez and Todd Kay; and by our guarantee. The DBS facility includes customary default provisions. In addition, we are subject to certain
restrictive covenants, including annual covenants that we maintain a specified tangible net worth and a minimum level of EBITDA at
December 31, 2009. We are also required to maintain specified interest coverage ratio and leverage ratio and a limitation on mergers or
acquisitions in excess of a specified amount. As of March 31, 2009 we were in compliance with the covenants. As of March 31, 2009, $6.9
million was outstanding under this facility. In addition, $6.3 million of open letters of credit were outstanding and $6.8 million was available for
future borrowings as of March 31, 2009.

10
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From time to time, we open letters of credit under an uncommitted line of credit from Aurora Capital Associates which issues these letters of
credits out of Israeli Discount Bank. As of March 31, 2009, $1.4 million was outstanding under this facility and $1.1 million of letters of credit
was open under this arrangement. We pay a commission fee of 2.25% on all letters of credits issued under this arrangement.

Debt Facility and Factoring Agreement - GMAC Commercial Finance

On June 16, 2006, we expanded our previously existing credit facility with GMAC Commercial Finance, LLC (�GMAC CF�) by entering into a
new Loan and Security Agreement and amending and restating our previously existing Factoring Agreement with GMAC CF. This is a
revolving credit facility and had a term of 3 years. In February 2009, we entered into a consent and amendment pursuant to which GMAC CF
approved the proposed acquisition of our publicly held shares by an entity owned and controlled by Gerard Guez and Todd Kay, the maximum
amount of the credit facility was reduced to $40 million, and the credit facility was extended for an additional year. The extension is subject to
an opt-out provision which allows GMAC CF to terminate the credit facility with a notice of 60 business days after the proposed acquisition is
closed. The amount we may borrow under this credit facility is determined by a percentage of eligible accounts receivable and inventory, up to a
maximum of $40 million, and includes a letter of credit facility of up to $2 million. Interest on outstanding amount under this credit facility is
payable monthly and accrues at the rate of the �prime rate� plus 0.5%. Our obligations under the GMAC CF credit facility are secured by a lien on
substantially all our domestic assets, including a first priority lien on our accounts receivable and inventory. This credit facility contains
customary financial covenants, including covenants that we maintain minimum levels of EBITDA and interest coverage ratio and limitations on
additional indebtedness. This facility includes customary default provisions, and all outstanding obligations may become immediately due and
payable in the event of a default. The facility bore interest at 3.75% per annum at March 31, 2009. As of March 31, 2009, we were not in
compliance with the EBITDA covenant and a waiver of the default and amendment to the existing agreements were obtained on May 12, 2009.
A total of $14.2 million was outstanding with respect to receivables factored under the GMAC CF facility at March 31, 2009.

The credit facility with GMAC CF prohibits us from paying dividends or making other distributions on our common stock. In addition, the credit
facility with GMAC CF prohibits our subsidiaries that are borrowers under the facility from paying dividends or making other distributions to
us. The credit facility with DBS prohibits our Hong Kong subsidiaries from paying any dividends or making other distributions or advances to
us.

8. Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, �Fair Value Measurements�. SFAS No. 157 establishes a framework for measuring fair value
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective
for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007 except for non-financial assets and liabilities that are
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a non-recurring basis for which delayed application is permitted until fiscal
year beginning January 1, 2009. We adopted the provision of SFAS No. 157 beginning January 1, 2008. The adoption of SFAS No. 157 did not
have a material impact on our results of operations and financial condition.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised 2007), �Business Combinations�. The objective of SFAS No. 141(R) is to improve
the relevance, representational faithfulness, and comparability of the information that a reporting entity provides in its financial reports about a
business combination and its effects. The new standard requires the acquiring entity in a business combination to recognize all (and only) the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the transaction; establishes the acquisition-date fair value as the measurement objective for all assets
acquired and liabilities assumed; and requires the acquirer to disclose to investors and other users all of the information they need to evaluate
and understand the nature and financial effect of the business combination. SFAS No. 141(R) is effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2008. The adoption of SFAS No. 141(R) did not have a material impact on our results of operations and financial condition.

11
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In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, �Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements � an amendment of ARB
No. 51�. The objective of SFAS No. 160 is to improve the relevance, comparability, and transparency of the financial information that a reporting
entity provides in its consolidated financial statements by establishing accounting and reporting standards by requiring all entities to report
noncontrolling (minority) interests in subsidiaries in the same way � as an entity in the consolidated financial statements. Moreover, SFAS
No. 160 eliminates the diversity that currently exists in accounting for transactions between an entity and noncontrolling interests by requiring
they be treated as equity transactions. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. The adoption of SFAS
No. 160 did not have a material impact on our results of operations and financial condition.

In March 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 161, �Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, an amendment of FASB
Statement No. 133�. SFAS No. 161 requires enhanced disclosures about an entity�s derivative and hedging activities and thereby improves the
transparency of financial reporting. SFAS No. 161 is effective for fiscal periods and interim periods beginning after November 15, 2008. As this
pronouncement is only disclosure-related, it does not have an impact on our result of operations and financial condition.

In May 2008, the FASB issued SFAS No. 162, �The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles�. SFAS No. 162 identifies the
sources of accounting principles and the framework for selecting the principles to be used in the preparation of financial statements of
nongovernmental entities that are presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United States. SFAS
No. 162 is effective sixty days following the SEC�s approval of Public Company Accounting Oversight Board amendments to AU Section 411,
The Meaning of Present Fairly in Conformity With Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. We are currently assessing the impact of SFAS
No. 162 on our result of operations and financial condition.

In April 2008, the FASB issued Staff Position (�FSP�) 142-3, �Determination of the Useful Life of Intangible Assets�.
FSP 142-3 amends the factors that should be considered in developing renewal or extension assumptions used to determine the useful life of a
recognized intangible asset under SFAS No. 142, �Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets�. FSP 142-3 is effective for financial statements issued
for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2008. The adoption of FSP 142-3 did not have a
material impact on our results of operations and financial condition.

In April 2009, FASB issued three related Staff Positions: (i) FSP 157-4, �Determining Fair Value When the Volume and Level of Activity for the
Asset or Liability have Significantly Decreased and Identifying Transactions That Are Not Orderly�, (ii)
FSP 115-2 and FSP 124-2, �Recognition and Presentation of Other-Than-Temporary Impairments,� and (iii) FSP 107-1 and APB 28-1, �Interim
Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,� which will be effective for interim and annual periods ending after June 15, 2009. FSP
157-4 provides guidance on how to determine the fair value of assets and liabilities under SFAS No. 157 in the current economic environment
and reemphasizes that the objective of a fair value measurement remains an exit price. If we were to conclude that there has been a significant
decrease in the volume and level of activity of the asset or liability in relation to normal market activities, quoted market values may not be
representative of fair value and we may conclude that a change in valuation technique or the use of multiple valuation techniques may be
appropriate. FSP 115-2 and FSP 124-2 modify the requirements for recognizing other-than-temporarily impaired debt securities and revise the
existing impairment model for such securities, by modifying the current intent and ability indicator in determining whether a debt security is
other-than-temporarily impaired.
FSP 107-1 and APB 28-1 enhance the disclosure of instruments under the scope of SFAS No. 157 for both interim and annual periods. We do
not expect the adoption of these Staff Positions to have a material impact on our results of operations and financial condition.

9. Income Taxes
Our effective tax rate differs from the statutory rate principally due to the following reasons: (1) a substantial valuation allowance has been
provided for deferred tax assets as a result of the operating losses in the United States and foreign subsidiaries, since recoverability of those
assets has not been assessed as more likely than not; and (2) the earnings of our Hong Kong subsidiary are taxed at a rate of 16.5% versus the
35% U.S. federal rate.
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In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, �Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - An Interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109�. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise�s financial statements in accordance with
SFAS No. 109, �Accounting for Income Taxes�. FIN 48 also prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return that results in a tax benefit. Additionally,
FIN 48 provides guidance on de-recognition, income statement classification of interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure,
and transition. We adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. As a result of the implementation of FIN 48, we recognized no material
adjustment for unrecognized tax benefits but reduced retained earnings as of January 1, 2007 by approximately $1 million attributable to
penalties accrued as a component of income tax payable. As of the date of adoption, our unrecognized tax benefits totaled approximately $8.9
million.

We and our subsidiaries file income tax returns in the U.S., Hong Kong, Mexico and various state jurisdictions. We are currently subject to an
audit by the State of New York for the years 2003 to 2005, but are not currently being audited by other states or non-U.S. income tax
jurisdictions for years open in those taxing jurisdictions.

In the first quarter of 2008, we entered into a final settlement agreement with the IRS with respect to its examination of our Federal income tax
returns for the years ended December 31, 1996 through 2002. The settlement provided for total payments to the IRS of $13.9 million, including
$6.5 million of interest. We agreed to pay the IRS $4 million in March 2008 and an additional $250,000 per month until repayment in full of the
amount due. The settlement with the IRS was within amounts accrued for as of December 31, 2007 in our financial statements, and we therefore
do not anticipate the settlement to result in any additional charges to income other than interest and penalties on the outstanding balance. Due to
the negotiated settlement, we reclassified the IRS and state tax liabilities from uncertain tax position to current payable on December 31, 2007.
In March 2008, we paid the IRS $4 million in accordance with the settlement terms. Due to the installment agreement with the IRS in March
2008, we reclassified $4.5 million of income tax payable from current payable to long-term as of March 31, 2009.

There was no unrecognized tax benefit as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008. As of March 31, 2009, the accrued interest and penalties
were $4.1 million and $386,000, respectively. As of December 31, 2008, the accrued interest and penalties were $4.8 million and $332,000,
respectively.

In many cases, the uncertain tax positions are related to tax years that remain subject to examination by the relevant tax authorities. Federal and
state statutes are open from 2003 through the present period. Hong Kong statutes are open from 2001 and Mexico from 2001.
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10. Net Income (Loss) Per Share
Basic and diluted income (loss) per share has been computed in accordance with SFAS No. 128, �Earnings Per Share�. A reconciliation of the
numerator and denominator of basic earnings (loss) per share and diluted earnings (loss) per share is as follows:

Three Months Ended March 31,
2009 2008

Basic EPS Computation:
Numerator $ (170,907) $ (253,283)
Denominator:
Weighted average common shares outstanding 30,543,763 32,043,763

Basic EPS $ (0.01) $ (0.01)

Diluted EPS Computation:
Numerator $ (170,907) $ (253,283)
Denominator:
Weighted average common share outstanding 30,543,763 32,043,763
Options and warrants �  �  

Total shares 30,543,763 32,043,763

Diluted EPS $ (0.01) $ (0.01)

All options and warrants were excluded from the computation of net loss per share in the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 as the
impact would be anti-dilutive. The following table presents potentially dilutive securities that were not included in the computation of loss per
share:

As of March 31,
2009 2008

Options 5,881,909 8,204,209
Warrants 5,020,000 5,931,732

Total 10,901,909 14,135,941

11. Related Party Transactions
As of March 31, 2009, related party affiliates were indebted to us in the amounts of $17.2 million. These include amounts due from Gerard
Guez, our Chairman and Interim Chief Executive Officer. From time to time in the past, we had advanced funds to Mr. Guez. These were net
advances to Mr. Guez or payments paid on his behalf before the enactment of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act in 2002. The promissory note
documenting these advances contains a provision that the entire amount together with accrued interest is immediately due and payable upon our
written demand. The greatest outstanding balance of such advances to Mr. Guez in the first quarter of 2009 was approximately $1,643,000. At
March 31, 2009, the entire balance due from Mr. Guez totaling $1.6 million was reflected as a reduction to shareholders� equity in the
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accompanying financial statements. All amounts due from Mr. Guez bore interest at the rate of 7.75% during the period. Total interest paid by
Mr. Guez was $31,000 and $37,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Mr. Guez paid expenses on our behalf of
approximately $33,000 and $114,000 for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, which amounts were applied to reduce
accrued interest and principal on Mr. Guez�s loan. These amounts included fuel and related expenses incurred by 477 Aviation, LLC, a company
owned by Mr. Guez, when our executives used this company�s aircraft for business purposes. Since the enactment of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act in
2002, no further personal loans (or amendments to existing loans) have been or will be made to our executive officers or directors.
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Azteca Production International, Inc. (�Azteca�) is owned by the brothers of Gerard Guez. We did not purchase any finished goods, fabric and
service from Azteca and its affiliates in the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008. Based on the repayment history of Azteca and
litigation Azteca is currently subject to, we estimated that our receivable of $3.4 million will take approximately three years for collection in full.
In 2007, we therefore made a $1.0 million reserve and then fair-valued the balance of this asset using our weighted average cost of capital as the
discount rate and a term of three years as the discount period. We received no payment during 2008 so we made additional reserve of $1.5
million in the general and administrative expense in the fourth quarter of 2008. As a result, the amount owed by Azteca recorded on the
consolidated balance sheets was $0 as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008.

On September 1, 2006, our subsidiary in Hong Kong, Tarrant Company Limited, entered into an agreement with Seven Licensing Company,
LLC (�Seven Licensing�) to act as its buying agent to source and purchase apparel merchandise. Seven Licensing is beneficially owned by Gerard
Guez. Total sales to Seven Licensing in the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 were $2.8 million and $4.2 million, respectively. Net
amounts due from this related party as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 were $15.4 million and $21.6 million, respectively. Of the
$15.4 million, $12.6 million was overdue at March 31, 2009.

On April 25, 2008, Gerard Guez and Todd Kay, our founders, executive officers and directors, originally announced to our Board of Directors
their intention to acquire all of the outstanding publicly held shares of our common stock for $0.80 per share in cash in a going private
transaction. On February 26, 2009, following approval of the proposed acquisition by the Special Committee of our Board of Directors formed
to review the proposal, we entered into a definitive agreement and plan of merger with Sunrise Acquisition Company, LLC (an entity owned by
Mr. Guez and Mr. Kay), Sunrise Merger Company, Mr. Guez and Mr. Kay. If the merger transaction contemplated by the agreement is
completed, each share of our common stock, other than shares held directly or indirectly or Mr. Guez or Mr. Kay, would be converted into the
right to receive $0.85 in cash and Tarrant Apparel Group would become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sunrise Acquisition Company.
Completion of the proposed acquisition is subject to various closing conditions, including approval by the holders of at least 66 2/3% of the
outstanding shares of our common stock and other customary conditions to closing.

We did not purchase any finished goods from Star Source, LLC and AJG Inc. dba Astrologie in the three months ended March 31, 2009. We
purchased $2.7 million of finished goods from them in the three months ended March 31, 2008. Star Source, LLC and AJG Inc. dba Astrologie
are beneficially owned by an adult son of Charles Ghailian, a former executive officer who resigned in May 2008. Our policies for board review
and approval of related party transactions were not followed with respect to the transactions with these entities because the related party nature
of the relationship was not known to us at the time, and no waiver of these policies has been granted, retroactively or otherwise, for the
transactions with Star Source and Astrologie. Upon becoming aware of the relationship, we immediately commenced an investigation of the
transactions and determined that the purchases from these parties were made at prices in excess of market prices that we could have obtained
from unaffiliated third parties, which determination Mr. Ghailian disputed. Following the investigation, in July 2008 we entered into a settlement
agreement with Charles Ghailian providing for settlement and mutual release of claims. Pursuant to the agreement, Mr. Ghailian delivered to us
1.5 million shares of our common stock for cancellation and we agreed to pay Mr. Ghailian $195,000 for transition services to be performed by
Mr. Ghailian from July 2, 2008 to October 31, 2008.

In January 2009, we relocated to our new principal executive offices on Figueroa Street in Los Angeles, California, which we sublease from
Seven Licensing. The sublease for the Figueroa Street facility provides for rental payment of $1.00 per twelve month period, and has an initial
term of nine months. We lease our former executive offices and warehouse on Washington Boulevard in Los Angeles, California from GET, a
corporation which is owned by Gerard Guez, our Chairman and Interim Chief Executive Officer, and Todd Kay, our Vice Chairman. Our lease
for the executive offices and warehouse on Washington Boulevard has a term of five years expiring in 2011, with an option to renew for an
additional five year term, at an annual rent of $656,000. We will continue to pay rent on the premises until the earlier of the termination of the
sublease for the Figueroa Street premises or such time as the Washington Blvd. building is leased to another party or sold. Additionally, we lease
our office space and warehouse in Hong Kong from Lynx International Limited, a Hong Kong corporation that is owned by Messrs. Guez and
Kay. Our lease for the office space and warehouse in Hong Kong has expired and we are currently renting on a month to month basis. We paid
$284,000 in rent in the
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three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, for office and warehouse facilities at these locations. Since May 1, 2006, we had sublet a portion
of our executive office in Los Angeles, California and our sales office in New York to Seven Licensing for a monthly payment of $25,000 on a
month to month basis. Beginning in February 2009, we only sublet a portion of our sales office in New York to Seven Licensing for a monthly
payment of $3,000 on a month to month basis. Seven Licensing is beneficially owned by Gerard Guez. We received $31,000 and $75,000,
respectively, in rental income from this sublease in the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008.

At March 31, 2009, we had various employee receivables totaling $160,000 included in due from related parties.

12. Commitments and Contingencies
In 2003, we acquired a 45% equity interest in the owner of the trademark �American Rag Cie� and the operator of American Rag retail stores for
$1.4 million, and our subsidiary, Private Brands, Inc., acquired an exclusive license to certain exclusive rights to this trademark. We guaranteed
the payment to the licensor of minimum royalties of $10.4 million over the initial 10-year term of the agreement. The guaranteed annual
minimum royalty is payable in advance in monthly installments during the term of the agreement. The royalty owed to the licensor in excess of
the guaranteed minimum, if any, is payable no later than 30 days after the end of the preceding full quarter with the amount for last quarter
adjusted based on actual royalties owed for the year. If a portion of the guaranteed minimum royalty is determined not to be recoverable, the
unrecoverable portion is charged to expense at that time. During 2008, we became involved in litigation with American Rag Cie, LLC and
American Rag Cie II with respect to our license rights to the American Rag Cie trademark. On December 23, 2008, we entered into a Settlement
Agreement with American Rag Cie, LLC and American Rag Cie II providing for a settlement and release of all claims with respect to litigation
with American Rag Cie, LLC and American Rag Cie II. In connection with the Settlement Agreement, on December 23, 2008 Private Brands,
Inc. and American Rag Cie, LLC entered into an Amended License Agreement. The Amended License Agreement reduced the annual
guaranteed minimum royalties and revised the royalty rates, effective October 1, 2008. The guaranteed annual minimum royalty under License
Agreement, as amended, for year 2009 is $553,000. At March 31, 2009, the total commitment on royalties remaining on the term under the
Amended License Agreement was $8.2 million.

On September 1, 2006, our subsidiary in Hong Kong, Tarrant Company Limited, entered into an agreement with Seven Licensing Company,
LLC to act as its buying agent to source and purchase apparel merchandise. Seven Licensing is beneficially owned by Gerard Guez. Total sales
to Seven Licensing in the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 were $2.8 million and $4.2 million, respectively.
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We lease our former executive offices and warehouse on Washington Boulevard in Los Angeles, California from GET, a corporation which is
owned by Gerard Guez and Todd Kay, our Vice Chairman. In January 2009, we relocated to our new principal executive offices on Figueroa
Street in Los Angeles, California, which we sublease from Seven Licensing. See Note 11 of the �Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.�

We entered into a lease agreement in June 2005 for our showroom in New York through June 2015. This is currently the location used for the
private brands sales, design and technical departments. In December 2008, we amended the lease to include additional floor for the showroom.
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13. Operations by Geographic Areas
Our predominant business is the design, distribution and importation of private label and private brand casual apparel. Substantially all of our
revenues are from the sales of apparel. We are organized into two geographic regions: the United States and Asia. We evaluate performance of
each region based on profit or loss from operations before income taxes not including the cumulative effect of change in accounting principles.
Information about our operations in the United States and Asia is presented below. Inter-company revenues and assets have been eliminated to
arrive at the consolidated amounts.

United States Asia

Adjustments
and

Eliminations Total
Three Months Ended March 31, 2009
Sales $ 32,686,000 $ 4,647,000 $ �  $ 37,333,000
Inter-company sales �  21,186,000 (21,186,000) �  

Total revenue $ 32,686,000 $ 25,833,000 $ (21,186,000) $ 37,333,000

Income (loss) from operations $ (23,000) $ 176,000 $ �  $ 153,000

Interest income $ 33,000 $ �  $ �  $ 33,000

Interest expense $ 150,000 $ 16,000 $ �  $ 166,000

Provision for depreciation and amortization $ 113,000 $ 26,000 $ �  $ 139,000

Capital expenditures $ 206,000 $ 3,000 $ �  $ 209,000

Total assets $ 34,387,000 $ 45,520,000 $ (25,017,000) $ 54,890,000

Three Months Ended March 31, 2008
Sales $ 44,841,000 $ 5,658,000 $ �  $ 50,499,000
Inter-company sales �  19,122,000 (19,122,000) �  

Total revenue $ 44,841,000 $ 24,780,000 $ (19,122,000) $ 50,499,000

Income (loss) from operations (1) $ (319,000) $ 276,000 $ �  $ (43,000)

Interest income $ 40,000 $ �  $ �  $ 40,000

Interest expense $ 196,000 $ 35,000 $ �  $ 231,000

Provision for depreciation and amortization $ 91,000 $ 33,000 $ �  $ 124,000

Capital expenditures $ 21,000 $ 11,000 $ �  $ 32,000
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Total assets $ 55,680,000 $ 113,121,000 $ (98,314,000) $ 70,487,000

(1) Loss from operations in the U.S. included a loss of $201,000 recorded in Luxembourg.

14. Litigation
Shareholder Complaint

On April 22, 2009, a complaint was filed in Superior Court of the State of California, County of Los Angeles (Case No. BC 41232) on behalf of
plaintiff Anthony M. McMichael asserting claims against us, each of our directors, Sunrise Acquisition Company, LLC and Sunrise Merger
Company, in connection with the proposed acquisition, by means of a merger, of our publicly held shares by Sunrise Acquisition Company,
LLC (an entity owned by Messrs. Guez and Kay and the Kay Living Trust). The plaintiff alleges that he is an owner of our common stock, and
this action purports to be a class action filed on behalf of our public shareholders. The complaint alleges, among other things, that our directors
breached their fiduciary duties in connection with the proposed merger by pursuing a transaction that is not fair to the public shareholders and
that the remaining defendants aided and abetted the alleged breaches of fiduciary duties. The complaint also alleges that our public disclosures
with respect to the proposed merger were inadequate or incomplete, rendering the disclosures materially misleading. The complaint seeks,
among other things, to enjoin us, our directors and the other defendants from proceeding with or consummating the proposed merger transaction
or, if we complete the transaction, to rescind the merger. A condition to the closing of the merger under the merger agreement is the absence of
an injunction which has the effect of making the merger illegal or otherwise legally prohibiting the consummation of the proposed merger. We
have not yet filed our answer to the complaint. Based on the facts known to date, we believe that the claims asserted by the plaintiff in the action
are without merit and we intend to defend this suit vigorously.
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TARRANT APPAREL GROUP

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

Other Matters

From time to time, we are involved in various routine legal proceedings incidental to the conduct of our business. Our management does not
believe that any of these legal proceedings will have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition or results of operations,
either due to the nature of the claims, or because our management believes that such claims should not exceed the limits of the our insurance
coverage.
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Item 2. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
The following management�s discussion and analysis should be read together with the Consolidated Financial Statements of Tarrant Apparel
Group and the �Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements� included elsewhere in this Form 10-Q. This discussion summarizes the significant
factors affecting the consolidated operating results, financial condition and liquidity and cash flows of Tarrant Apparel Group for the quarterly
periods and year to date ended March 31, 2009 and 2008. Except for historical information, the matters discussed in this management�s
discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations are forward looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties and
are based upon judgments concerning various factors that are beyond our control. See �Item 1A. Risk Factors� in Part II of this Form 10-Q.

Business Overview and Recent Developments

We are a design and sourcing company for private label and private brand casual apparel serving mass merchandisers, department stores,
branded wholesalers and specialty chains located primarily in the United States. Our major customers include retailers, such as Macy�s
Merchandising Group, Chico�s, New York & Co., Mothers Work, the Avenue, Wal-Mart, Mark�s Work and Lane Bryant, as well as wholesalers
such as Seven Licensing Company. Our products are manufactured in a variety of woven and knit fabrications and include jeans wear, casual
pants, shorts, skirts, dresses, t-shirts, shirts and other tops and jackets. Our private brands include American Rag Cie and American Star.

Private Label

Private label business has been our core competency for over twenty years, and involves a one-to-one relationship with a large, centrally
controlled retailer with whom we can develop product lines that fit with the characteristics of their particular customer. Private label sales in the
first three months of 2009 were $26.2 million compared to $42.2 million in the first three months of 2008.

Private Brands

We launched our private brands initiative in 2003, pursuant to which we acquire ownership of or license rights to a brand name and sell apparel
products under this brand, generally to a single retail company within a geographic region. Private brands sales in the first three months of 2009
were $11.1 million compared to $8.3 million in the first three months of 2008.

During the first three months of 2009, we sold apparel under the American Rag Cie private brand. Pursuant to our agreement with Macy�s
Merchandising Group, which extends through 2014, pursuant to which we exclusively distribute our American Rag Cie brand through Macy�s
Merchandising Group�s national Department Store organization of more than 600 stores. Net sales of American Rag Cie branded apparel totaled
$11.1 million in the first three months of 2009 compared to $8.2 million in the first three months of 2008.

Global Economic and Financial Crisis

Our results of operations have been, and will continue to be, effected by the worldwide economic downturn and financial crisis. The worldwide
apparel industry is heavily influenced by general economic cycles. Our performance is subject to the worldwide economic conditions and their
impact on levels of consumer spending that affect not only the ultimate consumer, but also retailers, which constitute many of our largest
customers. Consumer spending has deteriorated significantly for several months and may remain depressed, or be subject to further deterioration
for the foreseeable future. Our total net sales decreased by 26.1% in first quarter of 2009 as compared to the first quarter of 2008, primarily a
result of reduced demand by our customers due to the severe economic downturn as well as bankruptcies of retailers, such as Mervyn�s, that were
significant in 2008. We expect our performance to continue to be adversely effected until consumer demand for apparel and other goods
increases.

Further, the global banking crisis is affecting the availability of working capital to us, our vendors and our customers. Some vendors who
extended us credit have experienced difficulties with their banks and have been forced to reduce the credit terms extended to us. We are also
experiencing more rejection and withdrawal of customer credits by our factor and in a number of
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occasions, have been left with the option of either undertaking the credit risk internally or liquidating the finished goods at a loss. If the
conditions in the banking and credit markets, and the overall economic conditions in general, do not improve, our liquidity may be materially
and adversely affected.

Acquisition Proposal

On April 25, 2008, Gerard Guez and Todd Kay, our founders, executive officers and directors, originally announced to our Board of Directors
their intention to acquire all of the outstanding publicly held shares of our common stock for $0.80 per share in cash in a going private
transaction. On February 26, 2009, following approval of the proposed acquisition by the Special Committee of our Board of Directors formed
to review the proposal, we entered into a definitive agreement and plan of merger with Sunrise Acquisition Company, LLC (an entity owned by
Mr. Guez and Mr. Kay), Sunrise Merger Company, Mr. Guez and Mr. Kay. If the merger transaction contemplated by the agreement is
completed, each share of our common stock, other than shares held directly or indirectly or Mr. Guez or Mr. Kay, would be converted into the
right to receive $0.85 in cash and Tarrant Apparel Group would become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sunrise Acquisition Company.
Completion of the proposed acquisition is subject to various closing conditions, including approval by the holders of at least 66 2/3% of the
outstanding shares of our common stock and other customary conditions to closing.

We will be filing a definitive proxy statement and other documents concerning the proposed acquisition with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Shareholders are urged to read the definitive proxy statement when it becomes available and any other relevant documents filed
with the SEC because they will contain important information on the proposed transaction.

Nasdaq Deficiency Notice

In October 2008, Nasdaq suspended enforcement of its bid price and market value of publicly held shares requirements for continued listing on
the exchange, and Nasdaq has subsequently extended this suspension through July 20, 2009. On April 2, 2008, we were initially notified by The
Nasdaq Stock Market that we were not in compliance with Nasdaq Marketplace Rule 4450(a)(5) because shares of our common stock had closed
at a per share bid price of less than $1.00 for 30 consecutive business days. In accordance with Marketplace Rule 4450(e)(2), we were provided
with 180 calendar days to regain compliance. We held a special meeting of shareholders on September 4, 2008 and obtained shareholders�
approval to a reverse stock split, which may be implemented by our board of directors with a range of 1-for-1.5 to 1-for-4 if necessary to assist
with regaining compliance with the Nasdaq minimum bid price requirement. On October 2, 2008, we received a Nasdaq Staff Determination
Letter indicating that we had failed to regain compliance with the $1.00 minimum bid price requirement for continued listing and that our
securities were therefore subject to delisting from The Nasdaq Global Market. On October 3, 2008, we requested a written hearing before a
Nasdaq Listing Qualifications Panel to review the Staff�s determination. The hearing, which was scheduled for November 20, 2008, has been
cancelled due to the suspension of the bid price requirement. Nasdaq will not take any action through July 20, 2009 to delist our shares for the
bid price deficiency. If we are still deficient in bid price at the close of business on July 20, 2009, Nasdaq will contact us to reschedule a hearing
before a Nasdaq Listing Qualifications Panel.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America. The preparation of these financial
statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities. We are required to make assumptions about matters, which are highly uncertain at the time of the
estimate. Different estimates we could reasonably have used or changes in the estimates that are reasonably likely to occur could have a material
effect on our financial condition or result of operations. Estimates and assumptions about future events and their effects cannot be determined
with certainty. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate estimates, including those related to allowance for returns, discounts and bad debts, inventory,
due from related parties reserve, valuation of long-lived and intangible assets and goodwill, accrued expenses, income taxes, stock options
valuation, contingencies and litigation. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various assumptions believed to be applicable and
reasonable under the circumstances. These estimates may change as new events occur, as additional information is obtained and as our operating
environment changes. In addition, management is periodically faced with uncertainties, the outcomes of which are not within its control and will
not be known for prolonged period of time.
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We believe our financial statements are fairly stated in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America
and provide a meaningful presentation of our financial condition and results of operations.

We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements. For a further discussion on the application of these and other accounting policies, see Note 1 of the �Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements� included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Accounts Receivable�Allowance for Returns, Discounts and Bad Debts

We evaluate the collectibility of accounts receivable and chargebacks (disputes from the customer) based upon a combination of factors. In
circumstances where we are aware of a specific customer�s inability to meet its financial obligations (such as in the case of bankruptcy filings or
substantial downgrading of credit sources), a specific reserve for bad debts is taken against amounts due to reduce the net recognized receivable
to the amount reasonably expected to be collected. For all other customers, we recognize reserves for bad debts and chargebacks based on our
historical collection experience. If our collection experience deteriorates (for example, due to an unexpected material adverse change in a major
customer�s ability to meet its financial obligations to us), the estimates of the recoverability of amounts due us could be reduced by a material
amount.

As of March 31, 2009, the balance in the allowance for returns, discounts and bad debts was $726,000.

Inventory

Our inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. Under certain market conditions, we use estimates and judgments
regarding the valuation of inventory to properly value inventory. Inventory adjustments are made for the difference between the cost of the
inventory and the estimated market value and charged to operations in the period in which the facts that give rise to the adjustments become
known.

Long-Lived Assets

We account for long-lived assets, which include property and equipment, in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (�SFAS�) No. 144, �Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.� SFAS No. 144 requires that
long-lived assets be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not
be recoverable. Recoverability is measured by comparing the carrying amount of an asset to the expected future net cash flows generated by the
asset. If it is determined that the asset may not be recoverable, and if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated fair value, an
impairment charge is recognized to the extent of the difference.

We assessed whether events or changes in circumstances have occurred that potentially indicate the carrying amount of long-lived assets may
not be recoverable. We concluded that there were no such events or changes in circumstances during the first three months of 2009. Net property
and equipment balance was $2.0 million at March 31, 2009.

Intangible Assets and Goodwill

We have adopted SFAS No. 142, �Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.� We assess the need for impairment of identifiable intangibles with
indefinite lives (not subject to amortization), and goodwill with a fair-value-based test on an annual basis or more frequently if an event occurs
or circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount. Factors considered
important that could trigger an impairment review include, but are not limited to, the following:

� a significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results;
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� a significant change in the manner of the use of the acquired asset or the strategy for the overall business; or

� a significant negative industry or economic trend.
We utilized the discounted cash flow methodology to estimate fair value. As of March 31, 2009, we had a goodwill balance of $3.3 million.

Impairment of Goodwill

Goodwill in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets represents the �excess of costs over fair value of net assets acquired in previous
business combination�. SFAS No. 142, �Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,� requires that goodwill and other intangibles be tested for
impairment using a two-step process. The first step is to determine the fair value of the reporting unit, which may be calculated using a
discounted cash flow methodology, and compare this value to its carrying value. If the fair value exceeds the carrying value, no further work is
required and no impairment loss would be recognized. The second step is an allocation of the fair value of the reporting unit to all of the
reporting unit�s assets and liabilities under a hypothetical purchase price allocation.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized at the point of shipment for all merchandise sold based on FOB shipping point. For merchandise shipped on landed duty
paid (or �LDP�) terms, revenue is recognized at the point of either leaving Customs for direct shipments or at the point of leaving our warehouse,
or at the point our goods arrive at the customers� warehouse where title is transferred, net of an estimate of returned merchandise and discounts.
Customers are allowed the rights of return or non-acceptance only upon receipt of damaged products or goods with quality different from
shipment samples. We do not undertake any after-sale warranty or any form of price protection.

We often arrange, on behalf of manufacturers, for the purchase of fabric from a single supplier. We have the fabric shipped directly to the
cutting factory and invoice the factory for the fabric. Generally, the factories pay us for the fabric with offsets against the price of the finished
goods.

Stock-Based Compensation

On January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), �Share-Based Payment,� (�SFAS No. 123(R)�) which requires the measurement and
recognition of compensation expense for all share-based payment awards made to employees and directors based on estimated fair values. SFAS
No. 123(R) supersedes our previous accounting under Accounting Principles Board Opinion (�APB�) No. 25, �Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees� for periods beginning in fiscal 2006. In March 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin
(�SAB�) No. 107 relating to SFAS No. 123(R). We have applied the provisions of SAB No. 107 in our adoption of SFAS No. 123(R).

We adopted SFAS No. 123(R) using the modified prospective transition method, which requires the application of the accounting standard as of
January 1, 2006, the first day of our fiscal year 2006. Our financial statements as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008
reflect the impact of SFAS No. 123(R). The stock-based compensation expense related to employees or director stock options recognized for the
three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 was $59,000 and $130,000, respectively. Basic and dilutive income per share for the three months
ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 was decreased by $0.01 from $(0.00) to $(0.01) by the additional stock-based compensation recognized.
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Income Taxes

As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements, we are required to estimate income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in
which we operate. The process involves estimating actual current tax expense along with assessing temporary differences resulting from
differing treatment of items for book and tax purposes. These timing differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included in
our consolidated balance sheets. We record a valuation allowance to reduce our net deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not
to be realized. We have considered future taxable income and ongoing tax planning strategies in assessing the need for the valuation allowance.
Increases in the valuation allowance result in additional expense to be reflected within the tax provision in the consolidated statement of
operations.

In addition, accruals are also estimated for audits regarding U.S. tax issues based on our estimate of whether, and the extent to which, additional
taxes will be due. We routinely monitor the potential impact of these situations and believe that amounts are properly accrued for. If we
ultimately determine that payment of these amounts is unnecessary, we will reverse the liability and recognize a tax benefit during the period in
which we determine that the liability is no longer necessary. We will record an additional charge in our provision for taxes in any period we
determine that the original estimate of a tax liability is less than we expect the ultimate assessment to be.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, �Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - An Interpretation of FASB Statement
No. 109�. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in an enterprise�s financial statements in accordance with
SFAS No. 109, �Accounting for Income Taxes�. FIN 48 also prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return that results in a tax benefit. Additionally,
FIN 48 provides guidance on de-recognition, income statement classification of interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure,
and transition. We adopted the provisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. As a result of the implementation of FIN 48, we recognized no material
adjustment for unrecognized tax benefits but reduced retained earnings as of January 1, 2007 by approximately $1 million attributable to
penalties accrued as a component of income tax payable. As of the date of adoption, our unrecognized tax benefits totaled approximately $8.9
million.

We and our subsidiaries file income tax returns in the U.S., Hong Kong, Mexico and various state jurisdictions. We are currently subject to an
audit by the State of New York for the years 2003 to 2005, but are not currently being audited by other states or non-U.S. income tax
jurisdictions for years open in those taxing jurisdictions.

In the first quarter of 2008, we entered into a final settlement agreement with the IRS with respect to its examination of our Federal income tax
returns for the years ended December 31, 1996 through 2002. The settlement provided for total payments to the IRS of $13.9 million, including
$6.5 million of interest. We agreed to pay the IRS $4 million in March 2008 and an additional $250,000 per month until repayment in full of the
amount due. The settlement with the IRS was within amounts accrued for as of December 31, 2007 in our financial statements, and we therefore
do not anticipate the settlement to result in any additional charges to income other than interest and penalties on the outstanding balance. Due to
the negotiated settlement, we reclassified the IRS and state tax liabilities from uncertain tax position to current payable on December 31, 2007.
In March 2008, we paid the IRS $4 million in accordance with the settlement terms. Due to the installment agreement with the IRS in March
2008, we reclassified $4.5 million of income tax payable from current payable to long-term as of March 31, 2009.

There was no unrecognized tax benefit as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008. As of March 31, 2009, the accrued interest and penalties
were $4.1 million and $386,000, respectively. As of December 31, 2008, the accrued interest and penalties were $4.8 million and $332,000,
respectively.

In many cases, the uncertain tax positions are related to tax years that remain subject to examination by the relevant tax authorities. Federal and
state statutes are open from 2003 through the present period. Hong Kong statutes are open from 2001 and Mexico from 2001.

Debt Covenants

Our debt agreements require certain covenants including a minimum level of EBITDA and specified tangible net worth, and required interest
coverage ratio and leverage ratio as discussed in Note 7 of the �Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.� If our results of operations erode and
we are not able to obtain waivers from the lenders, the debt would be in default and callable by our
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lenders. In addition, due to cross-default provisions in our debt agreements, substantially all of our long-term debt would become due in full if
any of the debt is in default. In anticipation of us not being able to meet the required covenants due to various reasons, we either negotiate for
changes in the relative covenants or obtain an advance waiver or reclassify the relevant debt as current. We also believe that our lenders would
provide waivers if necessary. However, our expectations of future operating results and continued compliance with other debt covenants cannot
be assured and our lenders� actions are not controllable by us. If projections of future operating results are not achieved and the debt is placed in
default, we would be required to reduce our expenses, including by curtailing operations, and to raise capital through the sale of assets, issuance
of equity or otherwise, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. As of March 31,
2009, we were not in compliance with the EBITDA covenant and a waiver of the default was obtained on May 12, 2009.

New Accounting Pronouncements

For a description of recent accounting pronouncements including the respective expected dates of adoption and effects on results of operations
and financial condition, see Note 8 of the �Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.�

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, certain items in our consolidated statements of operations as a percentage of net sales:

Three Months Ended March 31,
2009 2008

Net sales 92.6% 91.7%
Net sales to related party 7.4 8.3

Total net sales 100.0 100.0
Cost of sales 71.9 72.6
Cost of sales to related party 6.7 7.5

Total cost of sales 78.6 80.1
Gross profit 21.4 19.9
Selling and distribution expenses 5.9 6.8
General and administration expenses 14.4 12.5
Royalty expenses 0.7 0.7

Income (loss) from operations 0.4 (0.1)
Interest expense (0.4) (0.5)
Interest income 0.1 0.1
Interest in loss of equity method investee �  (0.0)
Other income 0.0 0.3
Other expense (0.1) (0.1)

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes and minority interest 0.0 (0.3)
Provision for Income taxes 0.5 0.2
Minority interest (0.0) (0.0)

Net Loss (0.5)% (0.5)%

First Quarter 2009 Compared to First Quarter 2008

Total net sales decreased by $13.2 million, or 26.1%, to $37.3 million in first quarter of 2009 from $50.5 million in the first quarter of 2008.
Sales of private label in the first quarter of 2009 were $26.2 million compared to $42.2 million in the same period of 2008. The decrease in the
first quarter of 2009 resulted primarily from reduced demand by our customers due to the severe economic downturn and bankruptcies of
retailers, such as Mervyn�s, that were significant customers in 2008. Sales of private brands in the first quarter of 2009 were $11.1 million
compared to $8.3 million in the same period of 2008, with the increase resulting primarily from increased sales to Macy�s Merchandising Group.
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Gross profit consists of total net sales less product costs, direct labor, duty, quota, freight in, and brokerage, warehouse handling and markdown.
Gross profit decreased by $2.1 million, or 20.5%, to $8.0 million in the first quarter of 2009 from $10.0 million in the first quarter of 2008. The
decrease in gross profit was primarily caused by a decrease in total amount of sales. As a percentage of total net sales, gross profit increased
from 19.9% in the first quarter of 2008 to 21.4% in the first quarter of 2009. The increase in gross margin in the first quarter of 2009 was due
primarily to an increased proportion of sales of private brands which yield a higher gross margin than our private label products.

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by $1.2 million, or 36.0%, to $2.2 million in the first quarter of 2009 from $3.4 million in the first
quarter of 2008. The reduction is due primarily to a reduction in staff costs. As a percentage of total net sales, these expenses decreased to 5.9%
in the first quarter of 2009 from 6.8% in the first quarter of 2008.

General and administrative expenses decreased by $945,000, or 15.0%, to $5.4 million in the first quarter of 2009 from $6.3 million in the first
quarter of 2008 due to overhead reduction and cost-cutting efforts. As a percentage of total net sales, these expenses increased to 14.4% in the
first quarter of 2009 from 12.5% in the first quarter of 2008 due to the decrease in total net sales during the first quarter of 2009. Included in
general and administrative expenses in the first quarter of 2008 was a charge of $848,000 resulting from liquidated damages imposed by U.S.
Customs on two of our overseas vendors in April 2008.

Royalty expenses decreased by $72,000, or 21.6%, to $262,000 in the first quarter of 2009 from $334,000 in the first quarter of 2008. The
decrease was caused by lowered royalty rates in the fourth quarter of 2008 under the amended license agreement with American Rag Cie, LLC
reached in December 2008. As a percentage of total net sales, these expenses remained at 0.7% in the first quarter of 2009 and 2008.

Income from operations in the first quarter of 2009 was $153,000, or 0.4% of total net sales, compared to loss from operations of $43,000, or
(0.1)% of total net sales, in the comparable period of 2008, because of the factors discussed above.

Interest expense decreased by $65,000, or 28.0%, to $166,000 in the first quarter of 2009 from $231,000 in the first quarter of 2008. As a
percentage of total net sales, this expense decreased to 0.4% in the first quarter of 2009 from 0.5% in the first quarter of 2008.

Interest income decreased by $7,000, or 16.8%, to $33,000 in the first quarter of 2009 from $40,000 in the first quarter of 2008. Other income
was $32,000 in the first quarter of 2009, compared to $181,000 in the first quarter of 2008. Other expense was $50,000 in the first quarter of
2009, compared to $64,000 in the first quarter of 2008.

Interest in income (loss) of equity method investee represented our 45% share of equity interest in the owner of the trademark �American Rag Cie�
and the operator of American Rag retail stores. Interest in loss of equity method investee was $23,000 in the first quarter of 2008 compared to no
such income (loss) in the first quarter of 2009 due to the disposition of our 45% membership interest in connection with the settlement of the
litigation with American Rag Cie, LLC in December 2008.

Income before provision for income taxes and minority interest was $3,000 in the first quarter of 2009 and loss before provision for income
taxes and minority interest was $139,000 in the first quarter of 2008, representing 0.0% and (0.3)% of total net sales, respectively.

Provision for income taxes was $173,000, or 0.5% of total net sales in the first quarter of 2009 compared to $114,000 or 0.2% of total net sales
in the first quarter of 2008.
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There was no income (loss) allocated to minority interests, representing the minority partner�s share in PBG7 in the first quarter of 2009 and
income (loss) allocated to minority interests was immaterial in the first quarter of 2008.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our liquidity requirements arise from the funding of our working capital needs, principally inventory, finished goods shipments-in-transit,
work-in-process and accounts receivable, including receivables from our contract manufacturers that relate primarily to fabric we purchase for
use by those manufacturers. Our primary sources for working capital and capital expenditures are cash flow from operations, borrowings under
our bank and other credit facilities, issuance of long-term debt, sales of equity and debt securities, and vendor financing. In the near term, we
expect that our operations and borrowings under bank and other credit facilities will provide sufficient cash to fund our operating expenses,
capital expenditures and interest payments on our debt. In the long-term, we expect to use internally generated funds and external sources to
satisfy our debt and other long-term liabilities.

The global banking crisis is affecting the availability of working capital to us, our vendors and our customers. Some vendors who extended us
credit have experienced difficulties with their banks and have been forced to reduce the credit terms extended to us. We are also experiencing
more rejection and withdrawal of customer credits by our factor and in a number of occasions, have been left with the option of either
undertaking the credit risk internally or liquidating the finished goods at a loss. If the conditions in the banking and credit markets, and the
overall economic conditions in general, do not improve, our liquidity may be materially and adversely affected.

Our liquidity is dependent, in part, on customers paying on time. Any abnormal chargebacks or returns may affect our source of short-term
funding. Any changes in credit terms given to major customers may have an impact on our cash flow. Suppliers� credit is another major source of
short-term financing and any adverse changes in their terms will have negative impact on our cash flow.

Other principal factors that could affect the availability of our internally generated funds include:

� deterioration of sales due to weakness in the markets in which we sell our products;

� decreases in market prices for our products;

� increases in costs of raw materials;

� increase in uncollectible accounts due to defaults; and

� changes in our working capital requirements.
Principal factors that could affect our ability to obtain cash from external sources include:

� the creditworthiness of our customers;

� financial covenants contained in our current or future bank and debt facilities; and

� volatility in the market price of our common stock or in the stock markets in general.
Certain of our private brands product lines are generally associated with higher selling, general and administrative expenses, due to significant
design, development, and marketing costs compared to our private label business.
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As of March 31, 2009, we had $603,000 in cash and cash equivalents as noted on our consolidated balance sheets and statement of cash flows.
This represented a decrease of $4.6 million or 88.4% compared to a total of $5.2 million as of December 31, 2008.
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Cash flows for the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Cash Flows: 2009 2008
Net cash used in operating activities $ (3,566) $ (5,079)
Net cash used in investing activities $ (198) $ (363)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities $ (845) $ 7,116

During the first three months of 2009, net cash used in operating activities was $3.6 million, as compared to net cash used in operating activities
of $5.1 million for the same period in 2008. Net cash used in operating activities in the first three months of 2009 resulted primarily from a net
loss of $171,000, an increase in accounts receivable of $4.3 million as approximately half of the quarter�s sales occurred in March 2009, and a
decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses of $3.5 million due to customary accelerated payments to Asian vendors before Chinese
New Year. The above was partially offset by a decrease in due from related parties of $6.2 million resulting from payments received from and
reduced sales to this related party in the first quarter of 2009.

During the first three months of 2009, net cash used in investing activities was $198,000, as compared to net cash used in investing activities of
$363,000 in the first three months of 2008. Net cash used in investing activities in the first three months of 2009 resulted primarily from the
purchase of property and equipment of $209,000.

During the first three months of 2009, net cash used in financing activities was $845,000, as compared to net cash provided by financing
activities of $7.1 million in the first three months of 2008. Net cash used in financing activities in the first three months of 2009 resulted
primarily from payment of our short-term borrowings of $2.4 million and partially offset by a $1.6 million increase in borrowings under our debt
facility and factoring agreement.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

Following is a summary of our contractual obligations and commercial commitments available to us as of March 31, 2009 (in millions):

Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations Total
Less than

1 year
Between
2-3 years

Between
4-5 years

After
5 years

Long-term debt (1) $ 14.7 $ 14.7 $ �  $ �  $ �  
Operating leases 8.6 1.6 3.0 2.2 1.8
Minimum royalties 8.2 0.6 1.4 1.9 4.3

Total Contractual Cash Obligations $ 31.5 $ 16.9 $ 4.4 $ 4.1 $ 6.1

(1) Includes interest on long-term debt obligations. Based on outstanding borrowings as of March 31, 2009, and assuming all such
indebtedness remained outstanding and the interest rates remained unchanged, we estimate that our interest cost on long-term debt would
be approximately $531,000.

Commercial Commitments

Available to Us
Total Amounts

Committed to us

Amount of Commitment Expiration per Period

Less than
1 year

Between
2-3 years

Between
4-5 years

After
5 years

Lines of credit $ 60.0 $ 60.0 $ �  $ �  $ �  
Letters of credit (within lines of credit) $ 20.0 $ 20.0 $ �  $ �  $ �  
Total commercial commitments $ 60.0 $ 60.0 $ �  $ �  $ �  
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Debt Obligations

The following table summarizes our debt obligations:

March 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Short-term bank borrowings:
Import trade bills payable � DBS Bank and Aurora Capital $ 1,845,636 $ 4,000,602
Bank direct acceptances � DBS Bank 3,346,000 3,591,801
Other Hong Kong credit facilities � DBS Bank 3,034,235 3,037,963

$ 8,225,871 $ 10,630,366

Debt facility and factoring agreement � GMAC CF:

March 31, 2009 December 31, 2008
Debt facility and factoring agreement � GMAC CF $ 14,166,523 $ 12,606,796

DBS Bank Credit Facility

In June 2006, our subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Tarrant Company Limited, Marble Limited and Trade Link Holdings Limited, entered into a new
credit facility with DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited (�DBS�), which replaced our prior letter of credit facility with DBS. Under this facility, we
may arrange for letters of credit and acceptances. The maximum amount our Hong Kong subsidiaries were permitted to borrow under this
facility at any time was US $25 million. In November 2008, the maximum amount was temporarily decreased to $22 million, and in March 2009
the maximum amount was further reduced to $20 million as a result of the bank�s policy of reducing credit limits provided to corporate clients.
The interest rate under the letter of credit facility is equal to the Hong Kong Dollar Standard Bills Rate quoted by DBS minus 0.5% if paid in
Hong Kong Dollars (which rate was 5.75% per annum at March 31, 2009) or the U.S. Dollar Standard Bills Rate quoted by DBS plus 0.5% if
paid in any other currency (which rate was 3.77% per annum at March 31, 2009). This is a demand facility and is secured by a security interest
in all the assets of the Hong Kong subsidiaries; by a pledge of our office property where our Hong Kong office is located, which is owned by
Gerard Guez and Todd Kay; and by our guarantee. The DBS facility includes customary default provisions. In addition, we are subject to certain
restrictive covenants, including annual covenants that we maintain a specified tangible net worth and a minimum level of EBITDA at
December 31, 2009. We are also required to maintain specified interest coverage ratio and leverage ratio and a limitation on mergers or
acquisitions in excess of a specified amount. As of March 31, 2009, we were in compliance with these covenants. As of March 31, 2009, $6.9
million was outstanding under this facility. In addition, $6.3 million of open letters of credit were outstanding and $6.8 million was available for
future borrowings as of March 31, 2009.

Revolving Credit Facility � GMAC Commercial Finance

On June 16, 2006, we expanded our previously existing credit facility with GMAC Commercial Finance, LLC (�GMAC CF�) by entering into a
new Loan and Security Agreement and amending and restating our previously existing Factoring Agreement with GMAC CF. This is a
revolving credit facility and has a term of 3 years. In February 2009, we entered into a consent and amendment pursuant to which GMAC CF
approved the proposed acquisition of our publicly held shares by an entity owned and controlled by Gerard Guez and Todd Kay, the maximum
amount of the credit facility was reduced to $40 million, and the credit facility was extended for an additional year. The extension is subject to
an opt-out provision which allows GMAC CF to terminate the credit facility with a notice of 60 business days after the proposed acquisition is
closed. The amount we may borrow under this credit facility is determined by a percentage of eligible accounts receivable and inventory, up to a
maximum of $40 million, and includes a letter of credit facility of up to $2 million. Interest on outstanding amount under this credit facility is
payable monthly and accrues at the rate of the �prime rate� plus 0.5%. Our obligations under the GMAC CF credit facility are secured by a lien on
substantially all our domestic assets, including a first priority lien on our accounts receivable and inventory. This credit facility contains
customary financial covenants, including covenants that we maintain minimum levels of EBITDA and interest coverage ratio and limitations on
additional indebtedness. This facility includes customary default provisions, and all outstanding obligations may become immediately due and
payable in the event of a default. The facility bore interest at 3.75% per annum at March 31, 2009. As of March 31, 2009, we were not in
compliance with EBITDA covenant and a waiver of the default and amendment to the existing agreements were obtained on May 12, 2009. A
total of $14.2 million was outstanding with respect to receivables factored under the GMAC CF facility at March 31, 2009.
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The amount we can borrow under the factoring facility with GMAC CF is determined based on a defined borrowing base formula related to
eligible accounts receivable. A significant decrease in eligible accounts receivable due to the aging of receivables, can have an adverse effect on
our borrowing capabilities under our credit facility, which may adversely affect the adequacy of our working capital. In addition, we have
typically experienced seasonal fluctuations in sales volume. These seasonal fluctuations result in sales volume decreases in the first and fourth
quarters of each year due to the seasonal fluctuations experienced by the majority of our customers. During these quarters, borrowing availability
under our credit facility may decrease as a result of decrease in eligible accounts receivables generated from our sales.

Letters of Credit

From time to time, we open letters of credit under an uncommitted line of credit from Aurora Capital Associates which issues these letters of
credits out of Israeli Discount Bank. As of March 31, 2009, $1.4 million was outstanding under this facility and $1.1 million of letters of credit
was open under this arrangement. We pay a commission fee of 2.25% on all letters of credits issued under this arrangement.

The credit facility with GMAC CF prohibits us from paying dividends or making other distributions on our common stock. In addition, the credit
facility with GMAC CF prohibits our subsidiaries that are borrowers under the facility from paying dividends or making other distributions to
us. The credit facility with DBS prohibits our Hong Kong subsidiaries from paying any dividends or making other distributions or advances to
us.

We have financed our operations from our cash flow from operations, borrowings under our bank and other credit facilities, issuance of
long-term debt, and sales of equity and debt securities. Our short-term funding relies very heavily on our major customers, banks, and suppliers.
From time to time, we have had temporary over-advances from our banks. Any withdrawal of support from these parties will have serious
consequences on our liquidity.

We may seek to finance future capital investment programs through various methods, including, but not limited to, borrowings under our bank
credit facilities, issuance of long-term debt, sales of equity securities, leases and long-term financing provided by the sellers of facilities or the
suppliers of certain equipment used in such facilities.

Related Party Transactions

In January 2009, we relocated to our new principal executive offices on Figueroa Street in Los Angeles, California, which we sublease from
Seven Licensing. The sublease for the Figueroa Street facility provides for rental payment of $1.00 per twelve month period, and has an initial
term of nine months. We lease our former executive offices and warehouse on Washington Boulevard in Los Angeles, California from GET, a
corporation which is owned by Gerard Guez, our Chairman and Interim Chief Executive Officer, and Todd Kay, our Vice Chairman. Our lease
for the executive offices and warehouse on Washington Boulevard has a term of five years expiring in 2011, with an option to renew for an
additional five year term, at an annual rent of $656,000. We will continue to pay rent on the premises until the earlier of the termination of the
sublease for the Figueroa Street premises or such time as the Washington Blvd. building is leased to another party or sold. Additionally, we lease
our office space and warehouse in Hong Kong from Lynx International Limited, a Hong Kong corporation that is owned by Messrs. Guez and
Kay. Our lease for the office space and warehouse in Hong Kong has expired and we are currently renting on a month to month basis. We paid
$284,000 in rent in the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008, for office and warehouse facilities at these locations. Since May 1, 2006,
we had sublet a portion of our executive office in Los Angeles, California and our sales office in New York to Seven Licensing for a monthly
payment of $25,000 on a month to month basis. Beginning in February 2009, we only sublet a portion of our sales office in New York to Seven
Licensing for a monthly payment of $3,000 on a month to month basis. Seven Licensing is beneficially owned by Gerard Guez. We received
$31,000 and $75,000, respectively, in rental income from this sublease in the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008.
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From time to time in the past, we had advanced funds to, Mr. Guez. These were net advances to Mr. Guez or payments paid on his behalf before
the enactment of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act in 2002. The promissory note documenting these advances contains a provision that the entire amount
together with accrued interest is immediately due and payable upon our written demand. The greatest outstanding balance of such advances to
Mr. Guez in the first quarter of 2009 was approximately $1,643,000. At March 31, 2009, the entire balance due from Mr. Guez totaling $1.6
million was reflected as a reduction to shareholders� equity in the accompanying financial statements. All amounts due from Mr. Guez bore
interest at the rate of 7.75% during the period. Total interest paid by Mr. Guez was $31,000 and $37,000 for the three months ended March 31,
2009 and 2008, respectively. Mr. Guez paid expenses on our behalf of approximately $33,000 and $114,000 for the three months ended
March 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, which amounts were applied to reduce accrued interest and principal on Mr. Guez�s loan. These amounts
included fuel and related expenses incurred by 477 Aviation, LLC, a company owned by Mr. Guez, when our executives used this company�s
aircraft for business purposes. Since the enactment of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act in 2002, no further personal loans (or amendments to existing
loans) have been or will be made to our executive officers or directors.

Azteca Production International, Inc. (�Azteca�) is owned by the brothers of Gerard Guez. We did not purchase any finished goods, fabric and
service from Azteca and its affiliates in the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008. Based on the repayment history of Azteca and
litigation Azteca is currently subject to, we estimated that our receivable of $3.4 million will take approximately three years for collection in full.
In 2007, we therefore made a $1.0 million reserve and then fair-valued the balance of this asset using our weighted average cost of capital as the
discount rate and a term of three years as the discount period. We received no payment during 2008 so we made additional reserve of $1.5
million in the general and administrative expense in the fourth quarter of 2008. As a result, the amount owed by Azteca recorded on the
consolidated balance sheets was $0 as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008.

On September 1, 2006, our subsidiary in Hong Kong, Tarrant Company Limited, entered into an agreement with Seven Licensing Company,
LLC (�Seven Licensing�) to act as its buying agent to source and purchase apparel merchandise. Seven Licensing is beneficially owned by Gerard
Guez. Total sales to Seven Licensing in the three months ended March 31, 2009 and 2008 were $2.8 million and $4.2 million, respectively. Net
amounts due from this related party as of March 31, 2009 and December 31, 2008 were $15.4 million and $21.6 million, respectively. Of the
$15.4 million, $12.6 million was overdue at March 31, 2009.

We did not purchase any finished goods from Star Source, LLC and AJG Inc. dba Astrologie in the three months ended March 31, 2009. We
purchased $2.7 million of finished goods from them in the three months ended March 31, 2008. Star Source, LLC and AJG Inc. dba Astrologie
are beneficially owned by an adult son of Charles Ghailian, a former executive officer who resigned in May 2008. Our policies for board review
and approval of related party transactions were not followed with respect to the transactions with these entities because the related party nature
of the relationship was not known to us at the time, and no waiver of these policies has been granted, retroactively or otherwise, for the
transactions with Star Source and Astrologie. Upon becoming aware of the relationship, we immediately commenced an investigation of the
transactions and determined that the purchases from these parties were made at prices in excess of market prices that we could have obtained
from unaffiliated third parties, which determination Mr. Ghailian disputed. Following the investigation, in July 2008 we entered into a settlement
agreement with Charles Ghailian providing for settlement and mutual release of claims. Pursuant to the agreement, Mr. Ghailian delivered to us
1.5 million shares of our common stock for cancellation and we agreed to pay Mr. Ghailian $195,000 for transition services to be performed by
Mr. Ghailian from July 2, 2008 to October 31, 2008.

On April 25, 2008, Gerard Guez and Todd Kay, our founders, executive officers and directors, originally announced to our Board of Directors
their intention to acquire all of the outstanding publicly held shares of our common stock for $0.80 per share in cash in a going private
transaction. On February 26, 2009, following approval of the proposed acquisition by the Special Committee of our Board of Directors formed
to review the proposal; we entered into a definitive agreement and plan of merger with Sunrise Acquisition Company, LLC (an entity owned by
Mr. Guez and Mr. Kay), Sunrise Merger Company, Mr. Guez and Mr. Kay. If the merger transaction contemplated by the agreement is
completed, each share of our common stock, other than shares held directly or indirectly or Mr. Guez or Mr. Kay, would be converted into the
right to receive $0.85 in cash and Tarrant Apparel Group would become a wholly-owned subsidiary of Sunrise Acquisition Company.
Completion of the proposed acquisition is subject to various closing conditions, including approval by the holders of at least 66 2/3% of the
outstanding shares of our common stock and other customary conditions to closing.
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We have adopted a policy that any transactions between us and any of our affiliates or related parties, including our executive officers, directors,
the family members of those individuals and any of their affiliates, must (i) be approved by a majority of the members of the Board of Directors
and by a majority of the disinterested members of the Board of Directors and (ii) be on terms no less favorable to us than could be obtained from
unaffiliated third parties.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
Foreign Currency Risk. Our earnings are affected by fluctuations in the value of the U.S. dollar as compared to foreign currencies as a result of
doing business in foreign jurisdictions. As a result, we bear the risk of exchange rate gains and losses that may result in the future. At times we
use forward exchange contracts to reduce the effect of fluctuations of foreign currencies on purchases and commitments. These short-term assets
and commitments are principally related to trade payables positions. At March 31, 2009, we had no open foreign exchange forward contracts.
We do not utilize derivative financial instruments for trading or other speculative purposes. We actively evaluate the creditworthiness of the
financial institutions that are counter parties to derivative financial instruments, and we do not expect any counter parties to fail to meet their
obligations.

Interest Rate Risk. Because our obligations under our various credit agreements bear interest at floating rates, we are sensitive to changes in
prevailing interest rates. Any major increase or decrease in market interest rates that affect our financial instruments would have a material
impact on earning or cash flows during the next fiscal year.

Our interest expense is sensitive to changes in the general level of U.S. interest rates. In this regard, changes in U.S. interest rates affect interest
paid on our debt. A majority of our credit facilities are at variable rates. As of March 31, 2009, we had $1.4 million of fixed-rate borrowings and
$21.0 million of variable-rate borrowings outstanding. A one percentage point increase in interest rates would result in an annualized increase to
interest expense of approximately $210,000 on our variable-rate borrowings.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures.
Evaluation of Controls and Procedures

Members of the our management, including our Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, have evaluated the effectiveness of
our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined by paragraph (e) of Exchange Act Rule 13a-15 or 15d-15, as of March 31, 2009, the end of
the period covered by this report. Members of the our management, including our Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
also conducted an evaluation of our internal control over financial reporting to determine whether any changes occurred during the first quarter
of 2009 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. Based upon that
evaluation, the Interim Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures are effective.

Changes in Controls and Procedures

During the first quarter ended March 31, 2009, there were no changes in our internal control over financial accounting that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II � OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.
Shareholder Complaint

On April 22, 2009, a complaint was filed in Superior Court of the State of California, County of Los Angeles (Case No. BC 41232) on behalf of
plaintiff Anthony M. McMichael asserting claims against us, each of our directors, Sunrise Acquisition Company, LLC and Sunrise Merger
Company, in connection with the proposed acquisition, by means of a merger, of our publicly held shares by Sunrise Acquisition Company,
LLC (an entity owned by Messrs. Guez and Kay and the Kay Living Trust). The plaintiff alleges that he is an owner of our common stock, and
this action purports to be a class action filed on behalf of our public shareholders. The complaint alleges, among other things, that our directors
breached their fiduciary duties in connection with the proposed merger by pursuing a transaction that is not fair to the public shareholders and
that the remaining defendants aided and abetted the alleged breaches of fiduciary duties. The complaint also alleges that our public disclosures
with respect to the proposed merger were inadequate or incomplete, rendering the disclosures materially misleading. The complaint seeks,
among other things, to enjoin us, our directors and the other defendants from proceeding with or consummating the proposed merger transaction
or, if we complete the transaction, to rescind the merger. A condition to the closing of the merger under the merger agreement is the absence of
an injunction which has the effect of making the merger illegal or otherwise legally prohibiting the consummation of the proposed merger. We
have not yet filed our answer to the complaint. Based on the facts known to date, we believe that the claims asserted by the plaintiff in the action
are without merit and we intend to defend this suit vigorously.

Other Matters

From time to time, we are involved in various routine legal proceedings incidental to the conduct of our business. Our management does not
believe that any of these legal proceedings will have a material adverse impact on our business, financial condition or results of operations,
either due to the nature of the claims, or because our management believes that such claims should not exceed the limits of the our insurance
coverage.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.
This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains forward-looking statements, which are subject to a variety of risks and uncertainties. Our actual
results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of various factors, including those set forth
below and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Risk factors relating to our business, industry and common stock are contained in Item 1A of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2008. Except as set forth below, no material change to such risk factors has occurred during the three months ended
March 31, 2009.

We are subject to litigation related to the pending merger.

We are actively defending a stockholder lawsuit filed in California related to the proposed acquisition, by means of a merger, of our publicly
held shares by an entity owned by Gerard Guez and Todd Kay. In the action, the plaintiff alleges, among other things, that our directors breached
their fiduciary duties in connection with the proposed merger transaction by pursuing a transaction that is not fair to the public shareholders. The
complaint also alleges that our disclosures with respect to the transaction were inadequate or incomplete, rendering the disclosures materially
misleading. The complaint alleges that the remaining defendants aided and abetted the alleged breaches of fiduciary duties. The complaint seeks,
among other things, to enjoin us, our directors and the other defendants from proceeding with or consummating the proposed merger transaction
or, if we complete the transaction, to rescind the merger. The absence of an injunction prohibiting the consummation of the proposed merger is a
condition to the closing of the transaction.
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While we believe that the claims made in this litigation are without merit and intend to defend such claims vigorously, there can be no assurance
that we will prevail in our defense. Further, it is possible that additional claims beyond those that have already been filed will be brought by the
current plaintiffs or by others in an effort to enjoin the proposed acquisition or seek monetary relief from us. An unfavorable resolution of any
such litigation surrounding the proposed acquisition could delay or prevent the consummation of the transaction. In addition, the cost to us of
defending the litigation, even if resolved in our favor, could be substantial. Such litigation could also substantially divert the attention of our
management and our resources in general.

We may not be able to maintain our listing on the Nasdaq Global Market and if we fail to do so, the price and liquidity of our common stock
may decline.

The Nasdaq Stock Market has quantitative maintenance criteria for the continued listing of common stock on the Nasdaq Global Market. The
requirement currently affecting us is maintaining a minimum closing bid price per share of $1.00. On April 2, 2008, the Nasdaq Stock Market
Inc. issued a letter to us stating that we were not in compliance with the minimum closing bid price requirement and, therefore, faced delisting
proceedings. To regain compliance with the minimum bid price rule, the closing bid price of our common stock must close at $1.00 per share or
more for a minimum of ten consecutive business days. In accordance with Marketplace Rule 4450(e)(2), we were provided with 180 calendar
days to regain compliance. We held a special meeting of shareholders on September 4, 2008 and obtained shareholders� approval to a reverse
stock split, which may be implemented by our board of directors with a range of 1-for-1.5 to 1-for-4 if necessary to assist with regaining
compliance with the Nasdaq minimum bid price requirement. On October 2, 2008, we received a Nasdaq Staff Determination Letter indicating
that we had failed to regain compliance with the $1.00 minimum bid price requirement for continued listing and that our securities were
therefore subject to delisting from The Nasdaq Global Market. On October 3, 2008, we requested a written hearing before a Nasdaq Listing
Qualifications Panel to review the Staff�s determination. In October 2008, Nasdaq suspended enforcement of its bid price and market value of
publicly held shares requirements for continued listing on the exchange, and Nasdaq has subsequently extended this suspension until July 20,
2009. The hearing, which was scheduled for November 20, 2008, has been cancelled. Nasdaq will not take any action before July 20, 2009 to
delist our shares for the bid price deficiency. If we are still deficient in bid price at the close of business on July 20, 2009, Nasdaq will contact us
to reschedule a hearing before a Nasdaq Listing Qualifications Panel.

If Nasdaq reschedules our appeal hearing after the rule suspension expires in July 2009, we intend to request an additional period of time, if
necessary, so that we can determine whether the proposed going-private transaction will be completed before having to implement the reverse
stock split. If it is determined that the going private transaction will not be completed, we intend to implement the reverse stock split as soon as
possible in order to maintain listing on the Nasdaq Global Market. There is no assurance that the Nasdaq Panel will accept our appeal. Further,
there can be no assurance that if the reverse stock split is implemented the price per share of our common stock after the reverse stock split will
increase in an amount proportionate to the decrease in the number of issued and outstanding shares, or will increase at all, or that the market
price of the common stock immediately after the reverse stock split will be maintained for any period of time.

If we fail to maintain continued listing on the Nasdaq Global Market and must move to a market with less liquidity, our financial condition could
be harmed and our stock price would likely further decline. If we are delisted, it could have a material adverse effect on the market price of, and
the liquidity of the trading market for, our common stock.
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Item 6. Exhibits.

Exhibit

Number Description

  2.1     Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated February 26, 2009, by and among Tarrant Apparel Group, Sunrise Acquisition Company,
LLC, Sunrise Merger Company, Gerard Guez and Todd Kay. (Incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed February 27, 2009).

10.13.7 Consent to Enter Into Merger Agreement and Amendments to Agreements, dated February 24, 2009, by and among GMAC
Commercial Finance LLC, Tarrant Apparel Group, Fashion Resource (TCL), Inc., Tag Mex, Inc., and Private Brands, Inc.

10.24   Agreement dated September 1, 2006, Amendment No. 1 to Agreement dated January 1, 2007, Amendment No. 2 to Agreement
dated November 1, 2007, and Amendment No. 3 to Agreement dated June 16, 2008, each between Tarrant Apparel Group and
Seven Licensing Company, LLC.

10.25   Sublease Agreement between Tarrant Apparel Group and Seven Licensing Company, LLC.

10.26   Equity Rollover Agreement, dated February 26, 2009, by and among Sunrise Acquisition Company, LLC, Gerard Guez, Todd Kay
and Todd Kay and Kimberly Smith Kay Trustees Kay Living Trust. (Incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Current Report
on Form 8-K filed February 27, 2009).

10.27   Limited Joint and Several Guarantee, dated February 26, 2009, by and among Tarrant Apparel Group, Gerard Guez and Todd Kay.
(Incorporated by reference to the Registrant�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 27, 2009).

31.1     Certificate of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

31.2     Certificate of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

32.1     Certificate of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

32.2     Certificate of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

TARRANT APPAREL GROUP

Date: May 12, 2009 By: /s/    Patrick Chow        
Patrick Chow,

Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Date: May 12, 2009 By: /s/    Gerard Guez        
Gerard Guez,

Interim Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)
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